

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

# ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

Ninety-eighth Legislature

OF THE

# STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with subsection VI of section 27 of chapter 10 of the Revised Statutes of 1954.

---

KENNEBEC JOURNAL

AUGUSTA, MAINE

1957

---

---

**Private and Special Laws**

OF THE

**STATE OF MAINE**

As Passed by the Ninety-eighth Legislature

**1957**

---

---

The result of the vote shall be declared by the municipal officers of the town of Kennebunk and due certificate thereof shall be filed by the town clerk with the Secretary of State.

Effective February 23, 1957

## Chapter 9

### AN ACT Relating to Special Town Meetings in Town of Vassalboro.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

**Special town meetings.** No action of a special town meeting of the town of Vassalboro, Kennebec County, shall be valid unless the number of registered voters present at such meeting shall equal at least 10% of the total number of votes cast for Governor in said town of Vassalboro at the next preceding gubernatorial election.

Effective August 28, 1957

## Chapter 10

### AN ACT Relating to Castle Hill-Chapman-Mapleton Community School District.

**Emergency preamble.** Whereas, the high school building of the town of Mapleton, heretofore used by the Castle Hill-Chapman-Mapleton Community School District, has been destroyed by fire, and as a result thereof said district is without adequate school facilities; and

Whereas, said district has not sufficient authority to finance a new building; and

Whereas, the district has no other means of providing adequate school facilities; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

**Sec. 1. P. & S. L., 1947, c. 110, § 1, amended.** Section 1 of chapter 110 of the private and special laws of 1947 is hereby amended to read as follows:

**'Sec. 1. Territorial limits; name; purpose.** The territory comprising the towns of Castle Hill, Chapman and Mapleton and the people therein shall constitute a body politic and corporate under the name of "Castle Hill-Chapman-Mapleton Community School District" for the purpose of acquiring land within the said ~~towns~~ district for school and other educational purposes; for the purpose of erecting, enlarging, repairing, equipping, and maintaining on said prop-

## PRIVATE AND SPECIAL, 1957

## CHAP. 10

erty a school building or buildings and related physical educational facilities; for the purpose of completing, grading, furnishing, rebuilding, renovation, and otherwise bettering the condition of any or all land or buildings within said ~~towns~~ district for the use of school purposes or which may hereafter be used for school purposes.

That part of the town of Chapman which lies east of Presque Isle Stream is hereby excluded from the Castle Hill-Chapman-Mapleton Community School District, but this shall not affect the rights of the holders of the bonds of the district now outstanding or impair the obligation of other existing contracts of the district.'

Sec. 2. P. & S. L., 1947, c. 110, § 3, amended. Section 3 of chapter 110 of the private and special laws of 1947 is hereby amended by adding at the end thereof a new paragraph, to read as follows:

'After the 1957 annual town meeting, Chapman shall have only one member on the community school committee. The term of office of the present members from Chapman shall terminate at the 1957 annual town meeting. The member from Chapman shall be elected at the regular town meeting in 1957 and in each 3rd year thereafter to serve for a period of 3 years.'

Sec. 3. P. & S. L., 1947, c. 110, § 4, amended. Section 4 of chapter 110 of the private and special laws of 1947 is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 4. Scholastic powers and duties of the community school committee. The community school committee of the Castle Hill-Chapman-Mapleton Community School District shall have the same powers to operate and control schools in Castle Hill, Chapman and Mapleton said district as are vested in the superintending school committees by virtue of the laws relating to public schools of Maine.'

Sec. 4. P. & S. L., 1947, c. 110, § 5, amended. The first 6 sentences of section 5 of chapter 110 of the private and special laws of 1947, as amended by chapter 108 of the private and special laws of 1949, are hereby further amended to read as follows:

'To procure funds for the purpose of this act the community school committee is hereby empowered to issue bonds and notes either for purchasing of land, equipment, constructing, repairing, renewing or operational purposes. In no case shall said bonds or notes be issued for a longer period than ~~15~~ 20 years nor for a sum larger than ~~\$80,000~~ \$400,000 outstanding at any one time, and whenever the outstanding bonds or notes shall be less than that amount, additional bonds or notes may be issued to an amount which together with those outstanding shall not exceed \$400,000. Each bond and note shall have inscribed upon its face the words "Castle Hill-Chapman-Mapleton Community School District," shall bear interest at such rates as the community school committee shall determine, payable semiannually, and shall be subject to such other provisions as the community school committee shall determine. Said bonds and notes may be issued to mature serially or made to run for such periods as said community school committee may determine, but none of which shall run for a longer period than ~~15~~ 20 years from the date of original issue thereof. All bonds and notes issued by said district shall be signed by the treasurer and countersigned by the chairman of said district, and if coupon bonds be issued, each coupon shall be attested by the facsimile ~~signatures~~ signature of the ~~chairman and~~ treasurer printed thereon. ~~All bonds and notes issued by said district shall be callable at any interest date.'~~

## CHAP. 10

## PRIVATE AND SPECIAL, 1957

Sec. 5. P. & S. L., 1947, c. 110, § 6, amended. The last paragraph of section 6 of chapter 110 of the private and special laws of 1947 is hereby amended to read as follows:

'In case the amount in any sinking fund shall not be sufficient to pay the total amount when due of the bonds or notes for which such sinking fund was provided ~~or in case it shall become desirable in the opinion of the community school committee to call for redemption any outstanding bonds or notes and to issue new bonds or notes in their stead~~ authority is hereby granted to said district to issue new bonds or notes sufficient in amount to pay or redeem so many of said original bonds or notes as cannot be paid or redeemed from the sinking fund provided therefor, if any, but in no case shall such new bonds or notes mature more than 20 years from the original date of issue of the original bonds or notes so refunded.'

Sec. 6. P. & S. L., 1947, c. 110, § 8, amended. Section 8 of chapter 110 of the private and special laws of 1947 is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 8. Limitation of powers of community school committee. In regard to electing a superintendent of schools, the community school committee shall not act as a board but shall act as individuals representing their respective towns; in which case, the members from Mapleton shall have 1 vote each and the members from Castle Hill and Chapman shall have 1½ votes to each member and the member from Chapman shall have one vote.'

Sec. 7. P. & S. L., 1947, c. 110, § 9, repealed and replaced. Section 9 of chapter 110 of the private and special laws of 1947 is hereby repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

'Sec. 9. Capital contributions. The annual requirements of the district for capital outlay, including provision for the principal and interest of bonds and notes issued for capital purposes, shall be apportioned by the community school district in issuing their warrants to the assessors under the provisions of section 7, in the proportions which the then last State valuations of Mapleton, Castle Hill, and that part of Chapman situated west of the Presque Isle Stream, respectively, bear to the sum of such valuations; except that for provision for principal and interest of bonds and notes now outstanding, for each dollar that Chapman contributes, Castle Hill shall contribute \$4 and Mapleton \$7. In making the apportionment above prescribed, the State valuation of that part of Chapman west of the Presque Isle Stream shall be deemed to be that proportion of the State valuation of Chapman which the then last local assessed valuation of that part of Chapman west of the Presque Isle Stream bears to the then last local assessed valuation of Chapman.'

Sec. 8. P. & S. L., 1947, c. 110, § 12-A, additional. Chapter 110 of the private and special laws of 1947, as amended, is hereby further amended by adding thereto a new section, to be numbered 12-A, to read as follows:

'Sec. 12-A. Purchase of Mapleton school property. Said district, acting by its community school committee, may purchase from the town of Mapleton all or any part of said town's school land, agricultural shop and school equipment upon such terms as may be agreed upon.'

Sec. 9. P. & S. L., 1947, c. 110, § 13, amended. Section 13 of chapter 110 of the private and special laws of 1947 is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 13. Provisions for termination of school district. When any one town decides to withdraw from this school district, it must decide affirmatively to do so by a majority of the legal voters in said town in a special town meeting called for that purpose, and by giving the remaining town or towns a 2 years' notice of their intent to withdraw; provided ~~the withdrawing town may claim and demand its proportional share of its capital investment according to section 9 plus its proportional unexpended operational balances from the school maintenance, repair, vocational education, insurance and equipment accounts as mentioned in section 11~~ such withdrawal shall not relieve the withdrawing town from its obligation to make capital contributions required for the payment of bonds or notes and interest thereon or other obligations of the district incurred for capital purposes and then outstanding, or otherwise affect the rights of the holders of bonds or notes of the district then outstanding, or impair the obligation of other then existing contracts of the district.'

Emergency clause; effective date; referendum. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this act shall take effect when approved, only for the purpose of permitting its submission to the legal voters of the towns of Castle Hill, Chapman and Mapleton at a regular town meeting or a special meeting within each respective town, called and held not later than December 31, 1957. Such special meeting shall be called, advertised and conducted according to the law relating to municipal elections; provided, however, that the selectmen in the towns of Castle Hill, Chapman and Mapleton shall not be required to prepare for posting, nor the town clerks to post, new lists of voters, and for the purpose of registration of voters, the selectmen of each town shall be in session 1 hour preceding such special meeting. The town clerk in each respective town shall reduce the subject matter of this act to the following question: "Shall the Act Relating to Castle Hill-Chapman-Mapleton Community School District, passed by the 98th Legislature, be accepted?" and the voters shall indicate by secret ballot by the words "Yes" or "No" their opinion of the same. This act shall take effect for all the purposes hereof immediately upon its acceptance by a majority of the legal voters within each participating town voting on the question at meetings called and held as aforesaid.

The result of the vote in each town shall be declared by the municipal officers and due certificates thereof shall be filed by the town clerk with the Secretary of State.

Effective February 23, 1957

---



---

## Chapter 11

### AN ACT to Incorporate the Winter Harbor School District.

**Emergency preamble.** Whereas, the buildings which house the school pupils of the town of Winter Harbor are overcrowded, inadequate and in need of repair; and

Whereas, it is imperative that action be taken at the earliest possible moment to relieve these conditions; and

Whereas, acts passed by the Legislature do not become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless passed as emergency measures; and